
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting HFRA Hampshire Firefighters' 
Pension Board

Date and 
Time

Tuesday, 14th November, 2017 2.00 
pm

Place Room C, Fire and Police HQ, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh

Enquiries 
to

members.services@hants.gov.uk

Clerk to the Hampshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority
John Coughlan CBE

The Castle,
Winchester
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations are in force, giving a legal 
right to members of the public to record (film, photograph and audio-record) and report 
on proceedings at meetings of the Authority, and its committees and/or its sub-
committees. The Authority has a protocol on filming, photographing and audio-
recording, and reporting at public meetings of the Authority which is available on our 
website.  At the start of the meeting the Chairman will make an announcement that the 
meeting may be recorded and reported.  Anyone who remains at the meeting after the 
Chairman’s announcement will be deemed to have consented to the broadcast of their 
image and anything they say.

Agenda

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence received.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To enable Members to disclose to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary 
interest they may have in any matter on the agenda for the meeting, 
where that interest is not already entered in the Authority’s register of 
interests, and any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any such 
matter that Members may wish to disclose. 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

4 DEPUTATIONS  

Pursuant to Standing Order 19, to receive any deputations to this 
meeting. 

Public Document Pack



5 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.

6 FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT  (Pages 7 - 34)

To receive a report from the Chief Financial Officer providing an update 
on the development of key items.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
This agenda is available on the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service website 
(www.hantsfire.gov.uk) and can be provided, on request, in alternative versions 
(such as large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING

The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting.  If 
you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair 
access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.

http://www.hantsfire.gov.uk/
mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


1

AT A MEETING of the HFRA Hampshire Firefighters' Pension Board held at the 
Fire and Police Headquarters, Eastleigh on Monday, 17th July, 2017

Chairman:
p Stew Adamson

p  Malcolm Eastwood
p  Richard North
p Councillor Roger Price
p  Alex Rhodes           
p  Tom Simms

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies received.

2.  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

The Clerk called for nominations for a Chairman, noting the requirements of the 
Terms of Reference.  Stew Adamson was nominated, seconded and in the 
absence of any further nominations duly appointed Chairman of the Pension 
Board until the first meeting of the Board following the Annual meeting of the Fire 
Authority in 2018.

3.  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

The Clerk called for nominations for a Vice-Chairman, noting the requirements of 
the Terms of Reference.  Richard North was nominated, seconded and in the 
absence of any further nominations duly appointed Vice-Chairman of the 
Pension Board until the first meeting of the Board following the Annual meeting 
of the Fire Authority in 2018.

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were mindful of their duty to disclose at the meeting any disclosable 
pecuniary interest they had in any matter on the agenda for the meeting, where that 
interest was not already entered in the Authority's register of interests, and their 
ability to disclose any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any such matter 
that they might have wished to disclose.

In relation to Item 9, Richard North declared a non-pecuniary interest for the training 
allowances update.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes from the meeting on the 27 February 2017 were received and 
noted.  In relation to Minute 54, it was noted that Richard North had sent 
apologies for the meeting.  With this amendment, the minutes were agreed.

6.  DEPUTATIONS 

There were no deputations.

7.  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Chairman wished to record his thanks to the previous Chairman, Steve Foye 
for his contribution to the Pension Board, and welcomed Tom Simms to his first 
meeting as a newly elected Member of the Board.

8.  PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION UPDATE 

The Pension Board received a report from the Chief Financial Officer which 
updated the Board on administrative performance for October 2016 to March 
2017 (Item 8 in the Minute Book).  The report was introduced by the Chief 
Financial Officer who introduced the report, and the background to the 
administration of the fire pension schemes was set out.  Members’ attention was 
drawn to the tables showing performance for Quarter 3 and Quarter 4 as set out 
in paragraph 5, and the high achievement of targets during these periods was 
highlighted.

A discussion ensued about the forthcoming launch of the new Employer Pension 
webpages, and the importance of communicating this launch to members of the 
fire pension schemes was stressed.  It was heard that clear signposting within 
the site would help to eliminate confusion as to who to contact for pension 
related enquiries.  It was also agreed that it would be useful for Central Services 
reception to have relevant contact information relating to pension queries.

In relation to cases of death in service, it was heard that a new process map had 
been implemented to work through a number of urgent actions, and it was 
anticipated that this would be completed within 24 hours of being notified of an 
individual case.  Signposting for support and advice relating to this on the new 
website was also highlighted. 

Members received an update setting out the latest position with Civica, and it 
was noted that Civica were currently working through a programme to deliver the 
necessary functionality to administer all the Fire pension schemes.

RESOLVED:

That the Board note the information contained within the report.

Page 4



9.  FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT 

The Pension Board received a report from the Chief Financial Officer regarding 
ongoing issues (Item 9 in the Minute Book).  

The report was introduced and the position regarding The Pension Regulator 
online portal was set out.  Board Members were invited to log-in and complete 
the online training in order to receive a certificate for their individual training 
record.  The importance of Board Members completing these on-line training 
topics was highlighted and it was noted that Alex Rhodes would be able to offer 
assistance if required.

The Board received an update on a number of key issues raised in the log, 
including Unauthorised Payments, 30 Year Pension Contribution Holiday and 
Training Allowances as set out in Sections 5,6 and 7 of the report.  The position 
regarding Training Allowances was set out in light of the recommendation at the 
Standards and Governance Committee on the 23 March 2017 to make the 10% 
training allowance pensionable.  It was heard that a number of Fire Fighters had 
been identified who had received the 10% training allowance and work was 
currently underway to determine whether these allowances had been applied 
correctly.  It was also heard that the payment of other allowances would be 
examined and the Board would be provided with a future progress update.

Section 8 of the report provided an update on Voluntary Scheme Pays (VSP), 
and the background to this was explained to Members.  Members were 
supportive of the recommendation as set out in paragraph 8.10 of the report and 
noted that a report on VSP would be taken to a future HFRA Standards and 
Governance Committee for consideration. 

Section 9 of the report updated Board Members on the number of opt outs from 
the Fire Pension Scheme during the period 1 July to 31 December 2016 and 
these figures were detailed in the table as set out in paragraph 9.1.  Members 
discussed these figures and highlighted that the figure of 19 whole-time new 
joiners could become a temporary figure and a future update as to how many of 
these would remain in the pension scheme would be useful.  Members queried 
how this compared with other national comparators and Officers would 
investigate this further.  The importance of reaffirming the pension scheme to 
scheme members was discussed as well as the possibility of joint publicity with 
the Fire Brigades Union.  In relation to the recommendation at paragraph 9.5, 
Members were supportive of providing Members that were currently not in the 
Pension Scheme with details of the benefits of the Pension Scheme, ideally 
signposting to information on the Pension Scheme website. 

Members discussed details of other public sector schemes contribution rates as 
highlighted in Section 10 and set out in Appendix B, and requested that details of 
police scheme contribution rates be circulated to Members to provide a clearer 
picture of these rates.  Other key areas were highlighted such as the Employer 
Pension Groups and Members wished to record their thanks to Claire Neale who 
had been making excellent progress in her new role as Employer Pension 
Manager.  The Employer Pension Manager provided an update to the Board on 
pension training delivered to new recruits as well as pension presentations which 

Page 5



would be delivered as part of pre-retirement courses, the first of these courses 
would commence on the 24 July 2017.

Officers drew Members attention to Appendix D which set out the Risk Register 
and the risk scores before and after mitigation were explained.  With this 
explanation, Members were content to approve the Risk Register.

Members were taken through the new Employer Pension web pages which had 
been redeveloped but still to be launched, and noted and supported the new 
format.  It was heard that testing of the new format web pages would take place 
shortly by a few fire fighters/union representatives and feedback welcomed. 
Board Members were also encouraged to feedback views before the go live 
launch.   Officers also highlighted the importance of communication upon the 
launch of the web pages.  

RESOLVED:

That the Board note the content of the report and recommends:

(a) That Voluntary Scheme Pays (VSP) is allowed for any affected HFRS 
employee;

(b) That members that are not in a pension scheme, are contacted to provide 
them with details of the benefits of the pension scheme;

(c) That the Risk Register be approved.

Chairman, 

Page 6



HFRA Hampshire Firefighters’ Pension Board

Purpose:  Decision

Date 14 NOVEMBER 2017

Title FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT

Report of Chief Finance Officer

SUMMARY

1. This report provides an update on the development of key items

2. This report, together with attachments, provides the framework for this 
meeting agenda.

TRANSITIONAL AUTO ENROLMENT

3. Transitional deferment with regard to auto enrolment was applied to 91 
operational HFRA staff. This period of transitional deferment ended on 30 
September 2017.

4. Employees that are an eligible jobholder, and have no record of a previous 
opt out date were auto-enrolled in the scheme on 1 October 2017.

5. The LGA are seeking clarification over what happens if a transitional 
employee is not an eligible jobholder on 1 October 2017, but becomes one at 
a later date. This is because the Pension Regulator guidance states that 
membership would have to be backdated to 1 October 2017 regardless of the 
date they become eligible.

6. To give you an example, the transitional employee is not an eligible jobholder 
on 1 October 2017, but becomes one on 1 December 2018. Pension 
contributions taken in December 2018 would therefore be backdated to 1 
October 2017, meaning that 14 months arrears (1 October 2017 to 30 
November 2017) would be taken along with the current month.

NEW RECRUIT / TRANSFEREE

7. Where a new recruit to HFRA transfers from another FRA, they are entitled to 
retain membership of their existing pension scheme where service is 
continuous.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



8. As part of the recruitment process a membership option form is required to 
be completed to enable 

 The IBC Pensions Administration Team to identify which scheme the 
member should be a part of, deduct the correct level of contributions 
and calculate the correct taper date where applicable 

 To enable Pensions Services to apply to the previous FRA for details 
of service and pension benefits.

9. The IBC Recruitment team were making changes to their processes so that 
new recruits would be asked to fill in an achieve form version of the 
membership option form. The submitted form would then automatically be 
sent to a mailbox that the IBC Pensions Administration team manage.

10. Unfortunately, this process was only put in place for recruitment of Police 
Officers and Fire was outside the scope of this project. However, IBC 
recruitment has now agreed that they will incorporate the paper version of the 
form into their processes.

SUPREME COURT JUDGEMENTS

11. There have been two judgements regarding partner pensions recently.

12. Early in 2017 a judgement was handed down in respect of the requirement 
for nomination for a survivor’s pension to be made in the case of Brewster v 
NILGOSC.

13. This case was where a nomination form had not been completed for a co-
habiting partner.

14. Due to different legislation for each of the schemes, the issue only affects the 
2006 scheme for which the majority of the membership transferred to the 
2015 scheme under the reforms. Therefore the potentially affected cohort is 
very small.

15. The approach that is recommended is that as and when a case is known, 
then legal advice may need to be sought until such time as amended 
legislation is brought into force. The Board are asked to support this 
recommendation.

16. In July 2017 the Supreme Court handed down a judgement in respect of 
benefits payable to a Civil Partner in the case of Walker v Innospec.

17. This case was where benefits payable to surviving spouses / partners differ 
depending on whether their relationship with the originating member was a 
civil partnership, same sex marriage or opposite sex marriage.

Page 8



18. Again, the potentially affected cohort is believed to be relatively small and 
any impact minimised as the Fire Pension Schemes already base benefits on 
service from 6 April 1988 in such cases, where as Innospec only based 
benefits on service from December 2005.

19. Following this judgement, LGA understands that Government lawyers are 
considering the possible impacts the ruling will have on survivor pension 
rights offered by public service pension schemes, including the Fire Pension 
Schemes.

GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR) 

20. From 25 May 2018 the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
introduces new legislation governing the collection, use and processing of 
personal data.

21. While many of the provisions remain the same as the existing Data 
Protection Act, some new elements and significant enhancements will 
impose new responsibilities on schemes by granting a number of additional 
rights to data subjects.

22. Pensions Services have started working on a plan to determine what this 
means for them. In addition, the Chief Finance Officer has also contacted the 
Head of Risk and Information Governance as this will impact the whole of the 
County Council, and its partners.

23. More information can be found in APPENDIX A. It should be noted that 
although this has been written for LGPS administering authorities the same 
regulations will apply to the Fire Pension Schemes and the administrator.

OPT OUTS

24. Details of the historical opt out information between 2013/14 and the current 
year can be found in APPENDIX B.

PENSION ACCOUNTABILITIES

25. Work has been undertaken to define the boundaries of the pension 
accountabilities across different departments. There are three main areas

 Pensions Services
 IBC Pensions Administration Team
 HR

26. Pensions Services are responsible for issuing Annual Benefit Statements, 
providing estimates and calculating retirement benefits, along with dealing 
with complex enquiries.

Page 9



27. IBC Pensions Administration Team is effectively the payroll provider for 
HFRA. They provide the pension information, relating to pay and service to 
Pensions Services for new starters, leavers and retirements. They deal with 
those wanting to opt in or opt out of the scheme.

28. HR provides advice on pension policy and deal with any ill health retirements. 
They will provide instruction to the IBC Pensions Administration Team.

29. In July 2017, HR held two sessions for all HR staff on pensions. The 
introduction by Rob Carr covered the difference in the teams and started to 
address the issue of who does what for HR staff.

ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS

30. The statutory deadline for issuing Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) is 31 
August each year.

31. The Board will remember that for 2016, this deadline was not met and this 
subsequently resulted in a breach of law which was reported to the Pension 
Regulator. The outcome of which was that no further action would be taken 
as long as there was no repeat. 

32. ABS’ for members of the Fire Pension Schemes are posted to their home 
address as there is currently no pension member self service available. 
Although this is actively being considered at the present time by Pensions 
Services.

33. As the current home address for each member is held by the employer’s 
payroll provider rather than Pensions Services, some communications were 
put out a few weeks before the issue of the ABS’ to encourage individuals to 
check and update their home address within Employee Self Service (ESS).

34. The Board will be pleased to hear that the 31 August 2017 deadline was met 
and that ABS’ were issued to home addresses provided by the employer’s 
payroll provider, the IBC Pensions Administration Team.

35. There have only been a small number of queries about ABS’ and most of 
these have been regarding pay, rather than the content of the ABS. It is not 
known if this is a positive sign or not. For example: -

 Members do understand their ABS
 Members have not looked at their ABS or
 Members do not understand their ABS but have not raised a query

36. The Pension Board may wish to consider whether any additional 
communication is required to improve ABS statement awareness and 
whether any amendments to statements would be pertinent for next year to 
provide extra clarity or explanation.

Page 10



ANNUAL ALLOWANCE / LIFETIME ALLOWANCE

37. The statutory deadline to provide Pension Savings Statements is 6 October 
each year.

38. Pension Savings are calculated by assessing the difference in the value of 
the pension at the start of the Pension Input Period (PIP) and at the end of 
the PIP. The PIP runs from 6 April to 5 April.

39. This difference is called the Pension Input Amount (PIA) and the value of 
these Pension Savings, must not exceed the Annual Allowance (AA) limit for 
the year.

40. A Pension Savings Statement is automatically sent to a member where they 
have exceeded the Annual Allowance in the year, but can be sent to any 
member upon request.

41. This letter will inform the member if they have unused allowances from the 
previous three years that are available to offset any excess. It will also inform 
them if there is an excess which is taxable.

42. The letter that was issued for 2016/17 can be found in APPENDIX C. This is 
a complex area and the Board are invited to consider whether this 
communication could be improved. Although after feedback that Pension 
Services have received, they are already looking to improve the content of 
this letter.

43. Given the complexity, the Chief Finance Officer is proposing to hold seminars 
for those that might be affected by the AA issue and the Board are invited to 
support this proposal.

PENSION BOARD TRAINING

44. Pension Board members have been invited to attend a tax seminar run by 
the LGA. Dates and booking instructions have been sent out by email.

45. The last training needs analysis (TNA) were completed in December 2016. 
Some training was delivered after the Fire Pension Board meetings in both 
February and July 2017.

46. Pension Board members will therefore be asked to complete a new TNA so 
that the improvement in knowledge and understanding can be recorded. The 
results will be collated and included with the Pension Board report in 
February 2018.

Page 11



ALLOWANCES

47. A review of allowances is underway. This work is much wider than Pensions, 
but the aspects mentioned in this report are items that have pension 
elements. There are various pension strands to this work 

 Those receiving a 10% allowance which is not for training
 USAR 20% allowance and it’s potential change to a 10% allowance 

(which may or may not be pensionable)
 A review of the policy handbook including definitions and criteria
 A review of the governance around awarding an allowance
 A review of governance when the allowance no longer applies

48. Two workshops are being held on 3 November in order to baseline the 
allowances issues and start to formulate a robust set of rules and conditions. 
Area Managers, HR, Finance and other parties have been invited to these 
workshops.

49. This review is still in the early stages but is due to be completed by April 
2018. Further updates will be provided to the Board at the next meeting.

50. Since commencing this review of the allowances, a number of issues have 
come to light that perhaps give cause to question whether earlier decisions 
with regard to making Temporary Promotions (TP) pensionable were correct 
and in the best interest of the membership.

51. There was a legislation amendment that took effect from 1 July 2013 that 
allowed HFRA to make a decision that temporary allowances (including TP) 
would be pensionable. This decision was made believing that it was the right 
thing to do for the firefighter.

52. With effect from 1 July 2013, where an allowance is temporary and 
pensionable then the firefighter receives an Additional Pension Benefit (APB) 
in respect of the additional payments. This is an amount that is added to the 
Annual Pension.

53. However, the APB may not be as beneficial to the member as was initially 
thought as the amount of APB the member receives is very small when 
compared to the high level of pension contributions that are paid. In addition 
to this, the impact of this decision has been far more complex to administer 
than could have been anticipated. 

 The payroll system is not configured in the most effective way to 
handle the different variations of schemes and temporary allowances

 Information has to be extracted from the payroll system for purposes 
of estimates, leavers, retirements and End of Year data to Pensions 
Services

Page 12



 Information has to be captured by Pensions Services and records 
updated accordingly

 There is huge complexity around ensuring that when a member 
receives a temporary allowance, that they are given the correct 
pension benefit in return

54. The illustrations in APPENDIX D and APPENDIX E show the monetary value 
that is returned to the firefighter by way of an APB. The Board are invited to 
discuss their thoughts on this matter.

ILL HEALTH AND INJURY PENSION REVIEWS

55. At the Fire Employer group meetings the issue of ill health pension reviews 
and injury pension reviews has been discussed.

56. Reviews of ill health pensions are not mandatory, but reviews of injury 
pensions are required. It would appear that HFRA have never carried out any 
reviews of pensions.

57. HFRA have a policy in place stating that ill health pensions will be reviewed 
in the 4th and 8th year of receipt and that injury awards will be reviewed in the 
3rd and 5th year of receipt.

58. As an injury award is unlikely to be given without an ill health pension, this 
means that for a member that has an injury award, the injury award would be 
assessed in year 3, the ill health pension would be assessed in year 4, the 
injury award would be assessed again in year 5 and the ill health pension 
would be reassessed in year 8.

 The review of the injury award would be to determine if the degree of 
disablement should be increased, decreased or remain the same

 The review of the ill health pension would be to determine if the ill 
health pension should continue and that would depend on general 
health and ability to work

59. HR Shared Services is responsible for managing both these types of reviews 
and notifying Pensions Services of any amendments affecting the award of 
benefits.

60. Details of those currently in receipt of Ill Health and Injury Pensions have 
been provided by Pensions Services and analysis of the numbers involved 
can be found in APPENDIX F.

61. There are a small number of cases where the ill health pension and the injury 
pension award are due to be reviewed over the next four years.

Page 13



62. When an injury pension is awarded, before Pensions Services commence 
payment, they will ask the member to confirm what, if any, DWP benefits they 
are receiving in respect of the injury. Any amount of DWP benefits will be 
deducted from the injury pension. 

63. In addition to the review of these cases, there also needs to be a regular 
exercise to obtain details of DWP benefits that are in payment to assess the 
amount of the injury pension that can be paid to the member. There are 
currently 90 injury pensions that are in payment.

64. No further assessment of the amount in payment currently falls under the 
responsibility of Pensions Services and this is not reviewed unless the 
member contacts Pensions Services with revised details.

LGA FIRE PENSION CONFERENCE

65. Both the Employer Pension Manager and the Finance Transformation 
Manager attended the LGA Fire Pension Conference in London on 9 and 10 
October 2017. The Employer Pension Manager also attended the Fire 
Pensions Technical Group meeting on 9 October as a representative from 
the South East Fire Pensions Officer Group.

66. The first day of the conference had 4 main themes

 Governance 
 Risk 
 Internal controls
 Member communications

67. There were presentations from The Pensions Regulator, the chair of the 
Local Pension Boards Effectiveness Committee, the LGA Pensions Secretary 
and a Senior Adjudicator from the Pensions Ombudsman’s office.

68. The second day saw a presentation from The Home Office and the 
Government Actuary’s Department covering the valuation data at 31 March 
2016. The cost cap for the scheme is set at 16.8% of pensionable pay, with a 
2% tolerance. This presentation highlighted the fact that the scheme is very 
close to this. The Board may wish to note that any decisions around 
pensionable allowances and Temporary Promotions will have an effect on 
the cost cap. 

69. The results of the valuation are expected in spring 2018.

70. There were also presentations from Eversheds Sutherland with a case law 
update, The Pensions Regulator regarding data and GDPR. There was a 
presentation from LGA about the ending of Contracting Out and the 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation.

Page 14



71. There were also updates on both days from Clair Alcock LGA and Malcolm 
Eastwood in his capacity as chair of the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). One 
exciting new development is the launch of the SAB website: 
www.fpsboard.org.

72. It was a very informative conference with really good speakers, 
presentations, delegate interaction and networking. Board members are 
encouraged to consider attendance at the 2018 conference.

EMPLOYER PENSION WEB PAGES

73. At the Pension Board meeting in July, the new employer pension pages were 
launched and following positive feedback they went live on 16 August 2017.

74. The launch was publicised in communications on Yammer and Routine 
Notice.

75. Despite communicating the launch, the message about the available 
resources for fire-fighters does not appear to have hit the wider community.

76. Details of the “hits” on the new employer web pages between 1 August and 
18 October can be seen in APPENDIX H.

77. The Pension Board may wish to consider obtaining some feedback on the 
new employer web pages and on pensions in general and whether sending 
out a survey may be useful.

PRESENTATION FROM LOCAL PENSION PARTNERSHIP (LPP)

78. George Graham, LPP’s Managing Director of the Administration Business 
visited on 29 September 2017 to present to the Board the LPP pension 
administrator business model.

79. Those that attended found that the presentation was disappointing both in the 
delivery and content. However, whilst the presentation did not offer anything 
new in the way of Pensions Administration, it did provide a framework for the 
Pension Board members to start to think about how things could be 
improved.

80. Engagement and communication were two key themes that came out of the 
meeting and are areas that can be focused on going forward.

PENSION PRESENTATIONS

81. The Employer Pension Manager held the first Fire Pension Schemes pre 
retirement presentation in July 2017.

Page 15

http://www.fpsboard.org/


82. The presentation included all four schemes, covering how the schemes 
worked, how benefits are calculated with actual examples, Life Time and 
Annual Allowances, HMRC maximum benefits, as well as things like the 
retirement process, and what happens after retirement. This was extremely 
well received and there were plenty of questions that were asked. 

83. All attendees were provided with an individual estimate of their retirement 
benefits which was distributed after the presentation concluded. The 
Employer Pension Manager spent additional time after the session speaking 
to each person about their personal circumstances.

84. The next pre-retirement pension presentation is scheduled on 15 November 
2017.

85. The Employer Pension Manager will be attending Gosport Fire Station on 23 
November 2017 to give a pension presentation and to hold a Q&A session. 
There is also another session at Redbridge Fire Station planned for 6 
December 2017.

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION

86. In the communication that launched the new employer fire pension web 
pages, reference was made about the available resources that firefighters 
have access to. The communication that went into routine notice is included 
in APPENDIX G.

87. The Pension Board should now consider what approach they want to take 
with regard to engaging individuals and how information about pensions 
could be  more effectively communicated, utilising the resources that are 
available 

RECOMMENDATION

88. That the approach to co-habiting partners, as set out in paragraphs 12-15 be 
approved by the Hampshire Fire Firefighters’ Pension Board

Page 16



APPENDICES ATTACHED

89. APPENDIX A – GDPR – Actions for administering Authorities
90. APPENDIX B – Opt Out historical data summary
91. APPENDIX C – Blank template letter for Annual Allowance
92. APPENDIX D – 1992 Scheme APB example
93. APPENDIX E – 2006 Scheme APB example
94. APPENDIX F – Ill Health and Injury Pension review data summary
95. APPENDIX G – Website communications
96. APPENDIX H – Employer Pension Web page data

Contact: 

Claire Neale, Employer Pension Manager, claire.neale@hants.gov.uk, 
01962 845481

Page 17

mailto:claire.neale@hants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

Page 20



 

 

Page 21



 

 

Page 22



APPENDIX B 

Opt out data 

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17* 2017/18** 

Total number of opt outs in 
year 22 25 10 75 29 

            

Age of opt outs           

youngest age of opt out in 
year 24 22 22 21 22 

oldest age of opt out in year 57 55 52 53 58 

average age of opt out in 
year 39 41 35 38 38 

            

Ethnicity of opt out           

ethnicity not known 1 2 2 13 5 

mixed Caribbean 0 0 0 1 0 

white other 3 2 1 1 0 

white / British 18 21 7 60 24 

            

Whole time or Retained           

Retained 21 25 9 16 9 

Whole-time 1 0 1 59 20 

            

Opt out - automatic re-
enrolment           

Retained 21 23 7 12 6 

Whole-time 0 0 0 31 7 

Total 21 23 7 43 13 

            

Opt out - new joiner 
(refund)           

Retained 0 2 2 1 3 

Whole-time 1 0 1 25 13 

Total 1 2 3 26 16 

            

Opt out - deferred pension           

Retained 0 0 0 3 0 

Whole-time 0 0 0 3 0 

Total 0 0 0 6 0 

 

*2016/17 year – Automatic re-enrolment date 1 October 2016 

**2017/18 year – Only contains data from 1 April to 30 September 2017 

Page 23



1 

APPENDIX C 
 
 
 
 
Personal & Confidential 
Mr J Bloggs 
The Castle 
Winchester 
Hampshire 
 
 

 

 
 

Pensions Services 
The Castle, Winchester 
Hampshire, SO23 8UB 

 
Telephone: 01962 845588 

Fax: 01962 834537 
 

www.hants.gov.uk/pensions 
 

 
Enquiries to  

 

My Reference FIRE/Annual Allowance 
Notification 

Direct Line 01962 845588 
 

Your Reference AB123456C 
 

Date  Email pensions@hants.gov.uk 

 

 
Dear Mr Bloggs 
 
Hampshire Firefighters' Pensions   
Pension Savings Statement 2016/17 

Please find enclosed your Pensions Savings Statement for 2016/17.  This statement sets out 
the increase in your pension savings from the Fire Pension Scheme over 2016/17 for 
comparison against the HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) Annual Allowance threshold.  

We have sent you this statement for one of the following reasons: 

 Our records show that the increase in your pension savings in the Fire Pension 
Scheme over 2016/17 exceeds the standard Annual Allowance (based on the 
information we hold on your pension record at the time of the calculation), 

 You have requested a statement, 

 A third party has requested a statement on your behalf (you will need to forward this 
to them), 

 We have revised a previous statement due to a notification of a data change. 

Please refer to our website which gives you more information on how the Annual Allowance 
works www.hants.gov.uk/pensions/annualallowance. 

What should I do with this information?  

You will need this statement to work out whether you have to pay a tax charge. If you find 
that you do need to pay a tax charge, then there are different ways in which you can meet 
the charge as set out later in this document. 

Page 24

http://www.hants.gov.uk/pensions/annualallowance


2 

It is your personal responsibility to pay the correct amount of tax and therefore please 
take your time to read and understand this information. You may need to take 
independent financial advice in order to ensure you understand your tax position. 

You can use the HMRC online calculator to work out if you need to pay a charge 
https://www.tax.service.gov.uk/paac  

Members must report any annual allowance excess to HMRC as part of the self reporting 
process, even if a self assessment return is not ordinarily required by HMRC. The scheme 
is not responsible for informing HMRC on your behalf.  
 
You may wish to refer to HMRC guidance; 
http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/pensionschemes/calc-aa. 
 

Your pension savings  

There is a limit to the amount of pension you can build up in a year without paying any tax.  
This limit is called the Annual Allowance. 

HMRC measures your pension savings in a specific way, and over a specific time period: 

 The increase in your pensions savings is called the Pension Input Amount (PIA).  

 The increase in pensions savings is measured over a period which is called the 
Pension Input Period (PIP for short).  

You may be subject to an Annual Allowance tax charge if your PIA for an input period is 
more than the Annual Allowance in that period. The tax charge applies only to the amount 
above the allowance.  

However, there is a mechanism to carry forward unused Annual Allowance from the last 
three PIPs to fully or partially offset a tax charge. 

Pensions savings in the Fire Pension Scheme 

Your pensions savings for the 2016/17 year in this scheme were £40,952.32 and so have 
exceeded this year’s annual allowance by £952.32 (a). 

Assuming that you made no other pensions savings between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 
2017, you have the following unused annual allowance from the last 3 tax years to help 
cover the excess shown above; 

Tax 
Year 

Annual 
Allowance 

Unused Allowance 

2013/14 £50,000 £22,683.52 

2014/15 £40,000 £0.00 

2015/16 £40,000 £15,688.85 

After using the unused allowances above to cover this year's excess, your remaining unused 
annual allowance available to carry forward for 2017/18 is £15,688.85.  

This information is based solely on your pension benefits in the Fire Pension Scheme,  

 
 

Scheme Pays option 

If your total tax charge exceeds £2,000, then you may elect in writing for us to pay the tax 
charge and in turn we will apply a pension debit (an amount deducted from your pension 

Page 25

https://www.tax.service.gov.uk/paac


3 

when you retire).  You will still need to fill out a Self Assessment tax return to declare the 
excess. 

A Scheme Pays Election form has been enclosed with this letter. We must receive any 
elections for Scheme Pays in respect of 2016/17 by 31 July 2018. 

If you do not use the Scheme Pays option, you will need to notify HMRC of your excess and 
pay the tax charge to them directly. 

Page 26



4 

Pensions Savings Statement 2016/17 

 

1. Your personal details 

We have used the following details to produce the figures in this statement. 

Name: Joe Bloggs 

National Insurance 
number: 

AB123456C 

Payroll number: 01000000 

Date of birth: 1 January 1968 

2. Your pension input amounts 

The table below sets out:  

 your pensions savings in the Fire Pension Scheme over the 2016/17 PIP, and the 
three previous PIPs,  

 the standard Annual Allowance threshold applicable for each PIP 

 the amount by which your pension savings have exceeded the annual allowance 

Pension Input Period (PIP) 
Pension Input 
Amount (PIA) 

Annual 
Allowancea) 

Excess over 
annual allowance 

2016/17: 

(6 April 2016 to 5 April 2017) 

£40,952.32 £40,000 £952.32 

2015/16: 

Second part-year PIP 

(9 July 2015 to 5 April 2016) 

First part-year PIP 

(1 April 2015 to 8 July 2015) 

 

 

£24,311.15 

 

£8,881.20 

 

 

£0(b) 

 

£80,000 

 

 

(£15,688.85) 

2014/15: 

(1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015) 

£43,051.66 £40,000 £0.00 

2013/14: 

(1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014) 

£27,316.48 £50,000 £22,683.52 

 

Note: (a) A lower Annual Allowance may apply to the amount of Money Purchase pension 
savings you can make if you have accessed any pension savings using the new 
pension freedoms introduced in April 2015. 

 
(b) Up to £40,000 of the unused £80,000 Allowance from the first part-year PIP (1 April 
2015 to 8 July 2016) could be carried forward to the second part-year PIP (9 July 2015 
to 5 April 2016). 

  

Page 27



5 

Underlying data used in the calculations  

The figures above are based on the following salary and pension calculations: 

Pension Input 
Period (PIP) 

 

2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 

Pay figures:      

Final Salary pay at 
end of PIP 

£51,458.65 £50,027.51 £55,573.14 £52,518.59 £51,553.01 

Pension figures:      

Final Salary 60ths 
pension at end of PIP 

£31,341.27 £28,781.75 £30,103.68 £26,692.26 £24,471.09 

 

If you believe that any of the above data is incorrect, please contact Pensions 
Services as this may affect your Pension Input Amount calculation. 

The values above only take account of this pension scheme. You will also need to 
consider any other pension savings you have made during this period, and the last three 
years, to work out any tax charge. You may wish to seek independent financial advice before 
you make any decisions.  
 
Members must report any annual allowance excess to HMRC as part of the self reporting 
process, even if a self assessment return is not ordinarily required by HMRC. The scheme 
is not responsible for informing HMRC on your behalf. Members who submit a paper return 
should use form SA101. Nil tax returns are not required. 
Where members do not ordinarily complete a tax return they should now request one from 
HMRC to report the excess.  
 

Page 28



APPENDIX D 

Example of Additional Pension Benefit (APB) calculation for a member of the 

1992 scheme 

 

APB factors dependant on age and scheme 1992 scheme 

APB factor at age 30 10.8 

APB factor at age 35 12.5 

APB factor at age 40 14.5 

APB factor at age 45 16.6 

APB factor at age 50 19.1 

  Pay and allowances 
 Firefighter pay at 01/04/2017 £29,368.00 

10% pensionable allowance £2,936.80 

Total annual pensionable pay £32,304.80 

  Contribution rates dependant on pay and scheme 
 Employee contribution rate* 14.70% 

Employer contribution rate 21.30% 

Notional ill health contribution 1.60% 

Total contribution rate 37.60% 

* Based on pensionable pay between £30,909 and £41,212  
 

  Amount of contributions paid on allowance dependant on scheme 

Employee's contributions (£2,936.80 x 14.70%) £431.71 

Employer's contributions (£2,936.80 x 22.90%) £672.53 

Total amount of pension paid on allowance £1,104.24 

  Amount of APB to be added to pension dependant on age and scheme 

APB awarded if age 30 at relevant date (£1,104.24 / 10.8) £102.24 

APB awarded if age 35 at relevant date (£1,104.24 / 12.5) £88.34 

APB awarded if age 40 at relevant date (£1,104.24 / 14.5) £76.15 

APB awarded if age 45 at relevant date (£1,104.24 / 16.6) £66.52 

APB awarded if age 50 at relevant date (£1,104.24 / 19.1) £57.81 
 

Page 29



APPENDIX E 

Example of Additional Pension Benefit (APB) calculation for a member of the 

2006 scheme 

 

APB factors dependant on age and scheme 2006 scheme 

APB factor at age 30 8.3 

APB factor at age 35 9.7 

APB factor at age 40 11.5 

APB factor at age 45 13.3 

APB factor at age 50 15.4 

  Pay and allowances 
 Firefighter pay at 01/04/2017 £29,638.00 

10% pensionable allowance £2,963.80 

Total annual pensionable pay £32,601.80 

  Contribution rates dependant on pay and scheme 
 Employee contribution rate* 10.90% 

Employer contribution rate 14.20% 

Notional ill health contribution 2.60% 

Total contribution rate 27.70% 

* Based on pensionable pay between £30,909 and £41,212  
 

  Amount of contributions paid on allowance dependant on scheme 

Employee's contributions (£2,963.80 x 10.90%) £323.05 

Employer's contributions (£2,963.80 x 16.80%) £497.92 

Total amount of pension paid on allowance £820.97 

  Amount of APB to be added to pension dependant on age and scheme 

APB awarded if age 30 at relevant date (£820.97 / 8.3) £98.91 

APB awarded if age 35 at relevant date (£820.97 / 9.7) £84.64 

APB awarded if age 40 at relevant date (£820.97 / 11.5) £71.39 

APB awarded if age 45 at relevant date (£820.97 / 13.3) £61.73 

APB awarded if age 50 at relevant date (£820.97 / 15.4) £53.31 
 

Page 30



APPENDIX F 

 

Fire Ill Health Pension and Injury Pension review numbers 

 

 

HFRA 
  

Year review is due 

 Ill Health Pensions    2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Total ill health pensions 
over NPA 225 No reviews necessary   

Total ill health pension 
under NPA 

 
24 Potential reviews necessary 

ill health pension more 
than 8 years retired 

  
13 No reviews necessary   

Ill Health 8 year review 
due 

  
7 0 1 0 2 4 

ill health pension 4 year 
review due 

  
4 0 0 2 2 0 

                

 Injury Pensions   2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Total injury pensions 
over NPA 81 No reviews necessary   

Total injury pensions 
under NPA 

 
9 Potential reviews necessary 

Total injury pensions 
more than 5 years retired 

  
6 No reviews necessary   

injury pension review at 5 
years 

  
2 1 1 0 0 0 

injury pension review at 3 
years 

  
1 0 1 0 0 0 

                
 

DWP review   

Total number of injury pensions in payment that need review of DWP benefits - 90 

Page 31



APPENDIX G 
 
New look for firefighters’ pension scheme web pages 
 
If you’re a member of a firefighters pension scheme, check out the new pension web 
pages. These are much more user-friendly and make pension information more 
accessible. They can be accessed from our portal by searching for pensions. 
 
There are a range of pensions resources available to firefighters. 
 

 In the new look pages, the ‘getting help’ section will signpost you according to 
your query  http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-
help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pensionshelp.htm 
 

 New employer pension groups have been set up with representatives from 
across the shared partnership from HR, payroll, finance and Pensions 
Services 
 
 

Who does what? 
 

 Standards and Governance Committee is the scheme manager and is 
responsible for setting local policy. 
 

 There is a Firefighter’s Pension Board which scrutinises the actions of the 
employer and pensions administrator.  
 

 Shared Services HR maintains the policies and is responsible for pursuing 
things like Ill Health Retirement cases 
 

 Shared Services Payroll and Pensions Administration Team provides 
information to employees and to Pension Services about pensionable pay. 
When you raise an IBC query about pensions in ESS, this is the team that 
deal with your enquiry.  
 

 Pensions Services, who are independent of your employer, administer the 
pension schemes, providing estimates, Annual Benefit Statements and 
retirement benefits. 
 
 

Lots more information can be found on the new pension web pages. 
 
The pension pages for members of the Local Government Pension Scheme will also 
be updated later this year. 
 

Page 32

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome.htm
https://www.hfrs-myportal.net/
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pensionshelp.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pensionshelp.htm
http://democracy.hants.gov.uk/mgCommitteeMailingList.aspx?EM=0&ID=196
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome.htm


Page

Pages

Aug 1, 2017 - Oct 18, 2017

Explorer

This data was filtered using an advanced filter.

Pageviews Unique
Pageviews

Avg. Time on
Page Entrances Bounce

Rate % Exit Page
Value

827
% of Total:

0.01%
(11,219,618)

596
% of Total:

0.01%
(7,874,711)

00:01:13
Avg for View:

00:01:05
(13.18%)

89
% of Total:

0.00%
(3,250,066)

38.20%
Avg for

View:
55.72%

(-31.44%)

20.56%
Avg for

View:
28.97%

(-29.04%)

£0.00
% of

Total:
0.00%

(£0.00)

1. 400
(48.37%)

251
(42.11%)

00:00:46 64
(71.91%)

34.38% 18.75% £0.00
(0.00%)

2. 76
(9.19%)

58
(9.73%)

00:02:36 5
(5.62%)

40.00% 25.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

3. 67
(8.10%)

53
(8.89%)

00:02:14 11
(12.36%)

54.55% 40.30% £0.00
(0.00%)

4. 42
(5.08%)

39
(6.54%)

00:01:48 2
(2.25%)

50.00% 26.19% £0.00
(0.00%)

5. 37
(4.47%)

27
(4.53%)

00:01:49 4
(4.49%)

75.00% 24.32% £0.00
(0.00%)

6. 36
(4.35%)

30
(5.03%)

00:01:10 2
(2.25%)

0.00% 13.89% £0.00
(0.00%)

7. 30
(3.63%)

16
(2.68%)

00:01:53 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 13.33% £0.00
(0.00%)

8. 25
(3.02%)

23
(3.86%)

00:01:27 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 20.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

9. 24
(2.90%)

18
(3.02%)

00:01:27 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

10. 23
(2.78%)

16
(2.68%)

00:00:21 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 21.74% £0.00
(0.00%)

11. 14
(1.69%)

14
(2.35%)

00:01:00 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 28.57% £0.00
(0.00%)

12. 13
(1.57%)

12
(2.01%)

00:00:46 1
(1.12%)

0.00% 7.69% £0.00
(0.00%)

13. 9
(1.09%)

8
(1.34%)

00:02:12 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 11.11% £0.00
(0.00%)

14. 9
(1.09%)

9
(1.51%)

00:00:45 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 33.33% £0.00
(0.00%)

15. 8
(0.97%)

8
(1.34%)

00:00:21 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

16. 7
(0.85%)

7
(1.17%)

00:00:34 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

17. 2
(0.24%)

2
(0.34%)

00:00:28 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 50.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

18. 1 1 00:00:36 0 0.00% 0.00% £0.00

 Pageviews

Aug 15 Aug 29 Sep 12 Sep 26 Oct 10

5050

100100

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/req
uestestimate.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pen
sionshelp.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/whe
ntoleave.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/opt
out.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/leav
eorretire.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/opti
n.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/ben
efitstatements.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/con
tributions.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pen
sionsinfo.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/tem
porarypromotions.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/pen
sionsreengagements.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/aut
oenrolment.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/tran
sferpension.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/req
uestcetv.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/con
tributionholidays.htm

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps/fpsc
ontact.htm

/fire/pensionsfps

All Users
100.00% Pageviews

http://www.hants.gov.uk/

www.hants.gov.uk/ GO TO REPORT
APPENDIX H

Page 33

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?hl=en&pli=1&utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/content-pages/a4081638w7856893p8173806/?_u.date00=20170801&_u.date01=20171018&explorer-table.plotKeys=%5B%5D&explorer-table.rowCount=50&explorer-table.advFilter=%5B%5B0,%22analytics.pagePath%22,%22RE%22,%22pensionsfps%22,0%5D,%5B0,%22analytics.pagePath%22,%22PT%22,%22debug%22,1%5D%5D/


Rows 1 - 22 of 22

(0.12%) (0.17%) (0.00%) (0.00%)

19. 1
(0.12%)

1
(0.17%)

00:00:10 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

20. 1
(0.12%)

1
(0.17%)

00:00:06 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

21. 1
(0.12%)

1
(0.17%)

00:00:09 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

22. 1
(0.12%)

1
(0.17%)

00:00:10 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 0.00% £0.00
(0.00%)

/fire/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps.htm.

/hampshirecountycouncil/portal-help/hr/pensionsfps

/pensionsfps

/portal-help/hr/salaryexpensesbenefits/pensionshome/pensionsfps.htm

© 2017 Google

Page 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Fire Pension Board Status Report
	Appendix


